
1.
2.
3.
4. Approval of Agenda Action
5.

A. Action
6. Action
7.
 A. Action

8.
A. Action
B. Informational

C. Informational
D. Informational
E.

1. Informational

2. Informational
3. Informational

9.
10. Adjournment

CIO Report Michael Shackelford, CIO

2024 Cost Of Living Adjustment (COLA)/Updated 
Long Term Projections

Krysti Kiesel;                                   
Janie Shaw;                                           
Paul Wood,                                         

GRS Consulting

 

Approval of Meeting Minutes

Call to Order

Unfinished Business 

Approval of April 25, 2024 Board Meeting Minutes

Paula Fisher, Board Chair

Paula Fisher, Board Chair

Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag of New Mexico

2024 Experience Study

Any person with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language interpreter, or any other form of 
auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the hearing or meeting, please contact Trish Winter at 505-795-0712 or 
patriciab.winter@pera.nm.gov at least one week prior to the meeting, or as soon as possible.  Public documents, including 
the agenda and minutes, can be provided in various accessible formats.  Please contact Ms. Winter if a summary or other 
type of accessible format is needed.

Executive Director's Report

New Business

 

AGENDA

Items removed from Consent Agenda if necessary

Approval of Consent Agenda

Roll Call

Paula Fisher, Board Chair

Tony Garcia: May 2024: NCPERS Annual Conference

Greg Trujillo, Executive Director

Public Comment (Limited to three [3] minutes, at the discretion of the Chair)

Trustee Educational Conference Travel Reports

Paula Fisher: May 2024: NCPERS Annual Conference

Stephen Astorga: May 2024: NCPERS Trustee 
Educational Seminar (TEDS) & Annual Conference

PERA Board Meeting
PERA Building • Senator Fabian Chavez, Jr. Board Room

33 Plaza La Prensa • Santa Fe, NM 87507

Thursday, May 30, 2024
9:00am



1.
a. Normal
b. Deferred
c. Reciprocity to ERA
d. Non-Duty Death
e. Non-Duty Disability
f. Reciprocity to PERA

2.
a.

3.
a.

4.
a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

5.
a.

b.

c.

6.
a. June 11, 2024 9:00am
b. June 11, 2024
c. June 11, 2024
d. June 11, 2024
e. June 11, 2024

a. July 9, 2024 1:00pm
b. July 23-24, 2024 9am-5pm
c. July 25, 2024 9:00am

following Rules & Administration

Roberto Ramirez - 2024 NCPERS Public Pension Funding Forum; August 18-20, 2024; Boston, MA; 
Registration and expenses to be paid by PERA. 
Juan Diaz - 2024 NCPERS Public Pension Funding Forum; August 18-20, 2024; Boston, MA; 
Registration and expenses to be paid by PERA. 
Valerie Barela - 2024 IFEBP 70th Annual Employee Benefits Conference; November 10-13, 2024; San 
Diego, CA; Registration and expenses to be paid by PERA. 

 

Ratification of Retirements - Benefits processed through: 5/1/2024

PERA  Board Meeting
May 30, 2024

CONSENT AGENDA

Educational Conferences

Resolutions

Taos County – Resolution No. 2024-25 Authorizing Taos County to Pick-up an Additional 1% of the 
Municipal General Member Coverage Plan 4 Member Contributions with Effective Date of July 2024. 

Craig B. Meo - 9 months

Duty & Non-Duty Deaths

Affidavits for Free Military Service:
David Michelback - Non-Duty

City of Texico - Resolution No. 2024-3 Authorizing an Election for Adoption of Municipal Police 
Member Coverage Plan 5 with an Effective Date of July 2024
Torrance County – Resolution No. 2024-18 Authorizing Torrance County to Pick-up 37.5% of PERA 
Member Contributions with Effective Date of July 2024. 

Taos County – Resolution No. 2024-24 Authorizing Taos County to Pick-up an Additional 1% of the 
Municipal Police Member Coverage Plan 5 Member Contributions with Effective Date of July 2024.
Taos County – Resolution No. 2024-23 Authorizing Taos County to Pick-up an Additional 1% of the 
Municipal Detention Officer Member Coverage Plan 1 Contributions with Effective Date of July 2024.

Setting of Meetings: July 2024

Any person with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language interpreter, or any 
other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the hearing or meeting, please contact Trish 
Winter at 505-476-9305 or patriciab.winter@pera.nm.gov at least one week prior to the meeting, or as soon as 
possible.  Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in various accessible formats.  
Please contact Ms. Winter if a summary or other type of accessible format is needed.

Setting of Meetings: June 2024

Disability Review Committee

SmartSave Committee

Board Retreat
Board Meeting

1:00pm
Investment Committee
Disability Review Committee

Audit & Budget Committee
Rules & Administration Committee

following SmartSave
following Audit & Budget





1 

2 

3 

4 

TORRANCE COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. R 2024- 153 

5 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 37.5% PICK-UP OF PERA MEMBER 
6 CONTRIBUTIONS 
7 

8 WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 10-11 -5, authorizes affiliated public employers to be 

9 responsible for making contributions ofup to seventy-five percent of its employees' member 

1 O contributions to the Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) under certain 

I 1 conditions; and 

12 WHEREAS, the Governing Body of Torrance County is adopting this resolution to enhance the 

13 compensation package for current and future employees to assist with retention and recruitment; 

14 and 

15 WHEREAS, ToITance County desires to make thirty-seven and one-half percent (37.5%) 

16 of employee contributions for its municipal, police, and firefighter employees covered under 

17 PERA Municipal Coverage Plan 2 and PERA Police Coverage Plan 5; and 

18 \VHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 10-11 -5, this Resolution is irrevocable 

19 (subject to the exceptions set forth in Section 10-11 -5) and shall apply to all Torrance County 

20 employees within PERA Municipal Coverage Plan 2 and PERA Police Coverage Plan 5. 

21 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: that Torrance County, pursuant to NMSA 

22 1978, Section 10-11 -5, hereby elects to be responsible for making contributions of thirty-seven 

23 and one-half percent (3 7 .5%) of employees' member contributions to the Public Employees 

24 Retirement Association for its municipal, police, and firefighter employees under PERA 

25 Municipal Coverage Plan 2 and PERA Police Coverage Plan 5 effective July 1, 2024. 

26 DONE THIS~~DAY OF N\.o...y , 2024. 
-~--+,---

27 



2 APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 

3 
4 

5 

..... 

/~y -~ ~-
M~ I. Garcia: ~Attorney 

6 Date: O'~d. ·,:).,.* 
7 

8 
9 

10 

II ATTEST: 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

millo, County Clerk 

Date: S'~f;gcl V 
/ 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 









���������	��
������������������������������������������������������ �!"#$���!�%&��%&'()*�+,(- �.(/0120�345�6�7�8� 9(-:/;*1<2= >'()*?�@AB210:(/?�CBD,:2�C*/4:(/�EB/A:/-�E(<B) F�C<:/0�C1-*GHIJKL�GMNOKPN�QHNRKNS�QPTHU
VWXYZ�[\]\�̂_�W\̀]a�b_]\�̀c_d̂�̂[\�edcWXY�e\afX_a�gdahXai�g_]dbj�k_al̂�bXff�_d̂�_a�̂[\�mnmo�pqrstu�pvwxtyw�zqw{tw|�zy}q~���\̂�̂_�̂̀Z\��ẀY\��]_b��q|qx�����mn�Xa�̂[\��Xc]̀âYX̂��_���_f̂_a������̂[Xf�\�\â��]_bXf\f�̂[]\\�h̀�f�_���̀Wd̀cW\�]\f\̀]Y[��\��\]̂��]\f\â\]f��XafXi[̂�dW�hXfYdffX_af�àh�da�̀]̀WW\W\h�a\̂�_]ZXaij��_Xa�df�̀f��\�c]Xai�̂_i\̂[\]�̂_���]_�\ffX_àWf���_WXY�b̀ Z\]f��̀ah�̂[_di[̂�W\̀h\]fXa��dcWXY��\afX_af�̂_�h\W�\�Xâ_�̂[\�b_f̂��]\ffXai�Xffd\f�̀ah�\b\]iXai�̂]\ahf�f[̀�Xai�_d]�Xahdf̂]�j��[\̂[\]



����������	
�������
���������������
����������������������	����������������������������������������
�����
�������
���������
������� ���������!�������
����"�����#��������
������
��$�%�
�	���������
�������
����������!&��
���
��'�
�������������������
������
�������
���������
��(����)�*��+��
����
��
�����
�����������
������
����������
��
�����������
�������
������������	��
�������������
�����
������!�&��
������������������������������	���������������
�����
��
��������
����!,��������
��-������

��,������
����������
�����������������������
�����������������
�������
����������������
�����������������������������������������
�����
��.%�/&,��������!�(���������
������������������������
���������������
�
�
�
��������
���������	����������������
�
�� ��	��������

��
������������������������������
��������
������
���
������!0����&������
����(��	���������������12345678�96:;<=�>;2?2�
��(������@"���������'�������������������.%�/&,��
���������������������!��������������������������
���
�
����������A��������
���
�
�!��� BCDE�FGFHB�DE�E>IHEIJFK�LM��
NOPQR�SPTUVRWXRUYQZQQ[X\�]YQ̂PWPQ_P�̀�NabUcURUYQ�dZ]Ne]PQRPW�̂YW�fQ\UQP�gPXWQUQT]bUP̂�f̂ Û_PWV�h[iiURjZgg�]YQ̂PWPQ_PgPTUV\XRUOP�]YQ̂PWPQ_P



��������		
���������	�
���������
��
�������������
����������������	������������
��
�����
������	����
�����������������������	�����������������
�� �������!�����������
�� ��
������	���� ���������
��������
���� ���������
����"����
�!" ���������
���#���������
����������	��������#�����������	�������������
��	��
���������	������������
����$�������
��	���
	!�������
�������
��	��
�������������
��	���������	���"���������
�������������%&'%���(�)�
*�������+��,+������-.'+�,��!�����+�$��&'''./&'&01'%0&22.�3&'&01--0&4-56���7�	"�
�8�
���"�
�!��9�&'&2+�������



����������	�
�� �
��	���	�
�������������������������������������� !" ��� #$��%&���'�����(�) ��* ����
+,-�./012034567896:;8<=�>87;?58<:�<:9�4@=8;A65�458A6BC8::8:DE@;F?5 .GH/�I0JK2L=?M<=�N?O<9P�Q@;@587;�<:9�M67;76==8:D�<@;F?5

RS�TUVW�XYZ[V\S�



��������	��
��� �
����	��
������������������ ��������� �!"��#$���%�&�����'������%��$(���
)*+,-�./00122345678�39:;:<=9�>:769?@867A�>:7<67�BCDB�BE=6F39:;:<=@8�?;G�B:HI:@8�:F�JKLMNO�DPQ R-22S�R1*T1>:7<67�3469U8=V6�WX�:F�D?@6Y?ZZ�P567?8=:;@�F:7�8E6P?[Z?;G�M8EZ68=9@�\�J6;=:7�MGV=@:7�8:�P];67�̂:E;>=@E67_̀ �̀abc�de�_fe�gd̀hbi1�*+1�2//j-Tk�l/+m*+n�o/�,/TT1,o-Tk�m-op�S/q�*o�op1�rsrt�uTTq*2�vwx2/S11�R1T1yo0�z/Tl1+1T,1{�|p1+1�*+10q+1�o/�}1�w*TS�,p*Tk10�*Tn�n-0+qxo1+0�o*j-Tk�x2*,1�-T�op1�1wx2/S11�}1T1yo0�-Tnq0o+S�/~1+�op1�T1�o�l1mw/Top0�*Tn�m1�22�}1�m/+j-Tk�m-op�-Tnq0o+S�21*n1+0�o/�x2*T�0100-/T0�op*o�x+/~-n1�op1�2*o10o�*Tn�k+1*o10o0/2qo-/T0�o/�-00q10�l*,-Tk�S/q�*Tn�S/q+�x2*T��.1k-0o1+�1*+2S�o/�2/,j�-T�n-0,/qTo1n�x+-,-Tk�*Tn�x+1l1++1n�p/o12,p/-,10�gd_�b�̀��fe_� �̀_ip*o�S/q�jT/m�,*T�w*j1�*�}-k�n-ll1+1T,1�-T�mp*o�S/q�n/��v�x*Tn�S/q+�21*+T-Tk�*Tn�+1m+-o1�mp*o�-o�w1*T0�o/}1�*T�1�,1xo-/T*2�o+q0o11�/+�*nw-T-0o+*o/+�*o�op1��sop�uTTq*2�vwx2/S11�R1T1yo0�z/Tl1+1T,1��i-op��s�o+*,j0+1x+101To-Tk�/~1+��rs�0100-/T0��op-0�-0�op1�/T2S�1~1To�S/q�22�k*-T�jT/m21nk1�l+/w�op/01�mp/�o+q2S�qTn1+0o*TnS/q+�n*S�o/�n*S�,p*221Tk10������
���������������$���������



���������	��
������������������������������������� ���������!"��� �������������������������#�������������������� ����� ����������������"���������$%��&'�	�(�)*�+
���,�-��(�.��� ������" ���������������"��/���� ���������"����������������#���#���"�#�������"������ ������������������� �������������$%&�����0��
��1���
��*(��.������������������������� ����� ��#������������"����������/�����/#���������#����"������������234#���������������"��"������ �������"���������������������������"����$%&���5�
6*���
�	-�1�''
&��	����� ������������������������������ ����� ��#�������""�������������"������/�����/#���������#����"�����������27��"������ ���������#�������������/��������� �������"#�$8*�*�	-�9
+�'��:��/�#���������������;��/��������<��������������������������/#����������;����������"������������������ ���������/���" �����"��#�������������"�������#���$

=><?@A$BBCD�EFGHFI J�/�����K���CD�LMNOGFGHFI�6�*��P*+�*�,*��QRS�TRTU=V<B@A$BBCD�EFGHFI J�/�����K���CD�LMNOGFGHFIWXYZ[\X]�̂_̀ �ab\\c[deef_ghij\Z_hkZfXlck_]Yemignj\Z_hojhiompXh\[eqjrXhij]o_fompXh\[eWXYZ[\]j\Z_hos\j]\tuXX\ZhYZivwxyz{|}~q}�o��q�om}��o���qozz�z��y~m��mwx}��M�F��
�*-��*	�-��*���
��	(�P*+�*�,*��TQS�TRTU��������������������������������� �¡����¢����� ¡��¡��¢£



���������	�
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ������������!�"�������#����$$����%��&���%������������� ��������&��������!'�(�)�*���)+���%��������������������������������������%������������������������&����$���,����%��� ����!-��)./�01��.��*���2��������$�����������������������������������$���3����4���3��������3����������4������������ �����������������������������������%��� �����$�������������������������������%���������!-56�.7�-���)"�������#�����$$����%��&���%��������4�������������������#�����3������������������������$&��������8�������������������������4��������������$�������������&9��������������%���� ���!:;;����.7�)�.;<�=��.�.�>���	�?	57��./�@������#������%�����������������������������$��������������$������ �����A�����������������3���������8����������������������������������� ��$���!BC�DEFGDHCIJ��K��#�&�#������$��������������%��������#��������$�������������������������4���K�&�������������!



���������	
�����	�������	��	��	�����	���	�����	���	����������	�	����������	 �!�	��	�"#��$	%�	����������	&�	�����"�'	��"(��!	(�"#����	�����	���	 ����	"#�	 �"��"	��	"#�	�����"��	��	���	���	)�!�	"#�	)��"	�����)��	���������	��	&�#� �	��	���������$	*�))�"	"�	����	�����"���	���	!��(	"#�"	���+��	��""���	"#�	&��"	��	������"�'	�&,��"�-�'	���	"�)� ������"���$./012	�31/	45/67809:32;;;/</29=5/67809:320>;?13@10A;=8B/67>/502270>;/A?>3C//;D/2/E9=;832F/1/28/5B39/>;910</>G



���������	�	
��������������������	��������	���	
����������������������������	����������������	
������	�������� �!"�#����$%�&'())*+�(),�-).�/00+123�41�5+6*)1�)6�7460./89'(/1:+�(),�-).�/00+12�.5�0)�/�,++;�564)6�,40(�1)�/22404)1/8�6+:4*06/04)1�)6�56)<+**41:=++*9>+/8�/1*,+6*�)1�0(+�0)54<*�-).�1++2�0)�;1),�/?).0�0)2/-'6404</8�41*4:(0*�=6)@�ABC�+D5+60�56/<0404)1+6*�(/1254<;+2�0)�:.42+�-).>+/8E,)682F�/5584</04)1E?/*+2�8+/6141:�)55)60.1404+*G�*06+1:0(+1+2�1+0,)6;�)=�)7+6�BFCCC�<)88+/:.+*�0)�8+/61�=6)@�/12�+1:/:+�,40(H6)7+1�*)8.04)1*�-).�</1�0/;+�?/<;�/12�/558-

IJK�LMNNJLKJOP).Q88�24*<)7+6�/�7/64+0-�)=�/27/1<+2�*)8.04)1*�/12�0+<(14R.+*�0(/0�<)@58+@+10�0(+�1+,�41=)6@/04)1�=6)@-).6�*+**4)1*�,(48+�,/8;41:�0(6).:(�0(+�+D(4?40�(/889�S.6�+D(4?40)6*�41740+�-).�0)�0+*0�1+,�0+<(1)8):4+*�/12+D58)6+�247+6*+�*+674<+*�*)�-).�</1�;++5�5/<+�,40(�0(+�<(/1:41:�412.*06-�/12�T12�0(+�64:(0�*+674<+*�/1256)742+6*�=)6�-).6�1++2*9U(+�V10+61/04)1/8�W).12/04)1�G11./8�X@58)-++�Y+1+T0*�')1=+6+1<+�4*�/12�(/*�?++1740/8�0)�@-�6)8+�/*�/1�/2@414*06/0)6�41�+2.</041:�/88�*0/;+()82+6*�/12�@-�*0/==Z1)�)0(+6+1040-�(/*�<)@+�<8)*+�,40(�/1�)==+641:�0(/0�<)@5/6+*�0)�0(+�=).12/04)19[�\]̂_�̀a�b]cdef�Jgĥij]dh�O]kĥjlk�m�Kkinj�oipq�̀qr]p]njkejlkf�soLt�m�Jruclvhkn�KkinjfwwL
x



�����������	
���	�������������������������������	�������������������������������� �!�"�#$���%�&�"	�����	�����'���
�����������'��	�������
���(��������������������%������)	�%�����������%�����	�������������""*	�����
����������������
���(���!���#����&���
������������+!)��,-���.������	%������������&�'�����	��������������	�����/�����
����
���(������������	%�����0��%������%������1����������������%���������������%%�
���(�
����������
�������������"�����.����	��"	����
0�����	��(���	�������+02,��������"������"�������%�%�������'�����(�����������������.��������3�4��������%��%�"�����������������%��������������4�	�
	�����5	����02�����������&�	�����(��
���(�������������%�����67���&���������������(�����(��"�������(��
�����������*�	���������������8�����������%�"��
����(�������(��(���&�2�	�������%��������������������(��
�����5	�%�"&�"�����%"#���������02-9 0�
�%��������������:����;;;<=>?@<ABCD=AEFGHIJ=>�KD=>?@DLAE>D=AJMHJNHJCO>PN=IMHAJO=B>PHMD=AEFGHIJ=>OFAGH=QOCNHP>GHJ>@R��"�����������%���"��
������S���T�U�5	�����
����"���02���������������(	����������
�������������"���������*���"	�������"��
���������02������'��%�������%%�+V6V,�WX6#6WY7'��������V'�����������	�������������;;;<HZ>?F<ABCD>PN=IMHAJOOO>[>JM@D=AJMHJNHJCO>PN=IMHAJO=B>PHM�KD>PN=IMHAJOOO>[>JM@D=AJMHJNHJCO>PN=IMHAJO=B>PHMR��\]̂_̀ab̂]̂a_̂c����������%&������������&�	��%������(��&���������(���������"�����������.���&�	����%���d����"���
�����"��
�����������
��

e�



�����������	��
�������
	 ����
�������������������� �!�"�#$�%&'()�� ������� �*!�"�#$�+&%���,



���������	
��������������������������������������������������� ! "



�����������	�
������������������������������������������������ �!



�����������	���
����
	�������	�����������������
	���
�����	�����������		�����
	���	�������������������������	����� !""�	

	�����#��������
������
	���	�������������������
	�����$������
	�����������������	�%�����
�����#
�$
���	�
$���
	&��$����'()'*+,-'./01)*�234,5617'()'*+,-'./01)*8�
�����9:::;�<<=><< ?&�
���
	� ��@����������	��������%����$�	���	���	�������
��	�$�&���������	����
	��	�$���
ABC�DEFBCG�HDIJKLMNMKOMP�QJRS�TUVTWXNMOJKLMNMKOMYP�QJRS�TTVTU

XNMYY�ZJJ[ �X\N]KMNŶ_̀Y�aJNb�\]�]̂M�cJdKe\]_JK�fgJd]�hYaJNe�JK�iMKMj]Y�ikJl�m\kb_Kl�iMKMj]Y�XJeO\Y]�nJgY�oK�iMKMj]Y�cJdKe\]_JK�IJ[[dK_]pq_]M�r\̀ �qpY]M[�ZMsd_NM[MK]Y�XJk_O_MY�IJK]\O]�hYt UuUv�oK]MNK\]_JK\k�cJdKe\]_JK�JL�w[ k̀JpMM�iMKMj]�Xk\KY



Copyright © 2024 GRS – All rights reserved.

New Mexico Public Employees 
Retirement Association
2024 Experience Study

May 30, 2024
Krysti Kiesel, ASA, MAAA
Janie Shaw, ASA, EA, MAAA
Paul Wood, ASA, FCA, MAAA



Agenda

• Experience Study Process

• Summary of Recommended Assumptions

• Investment Return Assumption

• Cost-of-Living Assumption

• Mortality Assumption

• Fiscal Impact

2



Experience Study Process
Purpose of the Valuation

• The primary purpose of the annual actuarial 
valuation is to: 

– Determine the adequacy of the current State and 
employer contributions

– Describe the current financial condition of PERA 

– Analyze the changes in condition of PERA

– Provide various summaries of the data

3



Hired at age 30
Retire  

with annual benefit
Receive benefit 

for remaining lifetime

What is the probability
the member reaches

retirement?
(Termination assumption)

How much will
the benefit be?

(Benefit Provisions,
Salary increase assumption)

How long will
the benefit be paid?

(Mortality assumption)

When will the
member retire?

(Retirement assumption)

What level of COLA will be paid?

What investment earnings will be 
available to help pay the benefits?

What overall payroll will be available 
to provide contributions?

Experience Study Process
Actuarial Valuation: Projecting the Liability

4



Experience Study Process
How assumptions factor in…

• Over time, the true cost of benefits will be borne out in 
actual experience
– Ultimate benefits paid are NOT affected by actuarial 

assumptions or methods

– Determined by actual participant behavior (termination, 
retirement), plan provisions, and actual investment returns

• Assumptions help us develop a reasonable starting 
point for decision making and budgeting today

“Projections are difficult, especially ones about the future”

5



Experience Study Process

• Assumptions should occasionally change to 
reflect
– Emerging industry best practices

– New information and changing knowledge

– Changing patterns of retirements, terminations, 
mortality, etc.

• Recent experience provides strong guidance 
for some assumptions (for example, mortality) 
and weak guidance for others (for example, 
the investment return rate)

6



Experience Study Process

• Compare actual experience to current actuarial 
assumptions and recommend changes to 
assumptions if necessary to better align with 
future expectations

• Reviewed past experience over a given timeframe

– Identified how many members retired, terminated, 
became disabled, or died, including their age/service

– Identified salary increases received by active members

7



Economic Assumption Recommendations

• Price inflation: No recommended changes
• Investment return:  No recommended changes

– However, Board could consider lowering the assumption to 
increase the probability of meeting or exceeding the 
assumption

• Future COLAs: Decrease assumed future COLAs for the 
next 15 years, with higher assumed COLAs after 30 
years

• Individual salary increases: Recommend changes to 
better reflect actual experience

• Payroll growth:  No change to the current 3% payroll 
growth assumption

8



Demographic Assumption Recommendations

• Mortality: Recommend updating to more 
recently published base mortality table and 
mortality projection scale

• Termination/Retirement/Disability rates: 
Recommend changes to better reflect actual 
experience

– Recommendations depend on employee type

– Full set of recommendations provided in 
experience study report

9



Investment Return Assumption

• Survey of capital market 
expectations from 11 investment 
consultants

• Estimated forward looking 10-year 
return to be 7.15%

• 48.91% probability of achieving the 
7.25% assumption

• 50th percentile range is 6.11% to 
7.72%, of which the 7.25% 
assumption falls in the middle

• We believe the 7.25% investment 
return assumption remains 
reasonable

• However, the Board could consider 
lowering the assumption to 
improve the probability of meeting 
or exceeding the expected return

10

Probability of 

exceeding 

40th 50th 60th 7.25%

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)

1 5.28% 6.11% 6.94% 36.48%

2 5.50% 6.53% 7.57% 43.05%

3 5.62% 6.60% 7.59% 43.42%

4 5.94% 6.94% 7.95% 46.91%

5 6.06% 6.95% 7.85% 46.61%

6 6.51% 7.40% 8.30% 51.68%

7 6.51% 7.54% 8.58% 52.84%

8 6.73% 7.58% 8.43% 53.92%

9 6.70% 7.60% 8.51% 53.91%

10 6.68% 7.68% 8.68% 54.31%

11 6.74% 7.72% 8.71% 54.84%

Average 6.21% 7.15% 8.10% 48.91%

Capital 

Market 

Assumption 

Set (CMA)

Distribution of 10-Year Average Geometric 

Net Nominal Return

GRS 2023 CMAM



Investment Return Assumption

• We do not recommend the 
selection of an investment 
return assumption based on 
prevalent information

• Current median and mode rate 
of return is 7.00%

• Tremendous amount of 
pressure on the discount rate 
assumption in recent years

• Recent volatility in the capital 
markets is again shining the 
spotlight in the process of 
setting this assumption

11



Cost-of-Living Assumption

• Current COLA formula dependent on:
– Return on Actuarial Value of Assets
– Funded Ratio
– “Hurdle Rate”

• As the financial position of the Fund improves, future 
COLAs have a higher probability of increasing (will 
depend on investment experience)

• Current assumption: 1.60% annually
• Recommended assumption: 1.25% for 15 years, 1.60% 

for the next 15 years, 2.00% thereafter
– COLA assumption is highly dependent on the investment 

return assumption and changes in contribution rates

12



Mortality Assumption

• The Society of Actuaries recently released new mortality tables 
called Pub-2010, using data specific to public sector

• Recommend the use of the “below median” income adjusted tables 
for males and females, plus a one year set forward for females
– Average income in the State of New Mexico is roughly 12% lower than 

that the national average (source: Bureau of Labor Statistics)
– Life expectancy is New Mexico is lagging behind the rest of the country 

(source: CDC)

13

Actual Current Assumption Proposed Assumption

System Experience Expected A/E Expected A/E

All Divisions - Male 111,588 113,008 99% 111,420 100%

All Divisions - Female 45,801 53,037 86% 45,602 100%



Mortality Assumption

• Recommend updating to the ultimate rates of the most 
recently published mortality projection scale (U-MP2020)

14

Life Expectancy for an Age 65 Retiree in Years

Assumption Year of Retirement

2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Current Assumption – Male 19.7 20.0 20.2 20.5 20.8

Recommended Assumption – Male 20.4 20.8 21.2 21.6 22.0

Current Assumption – Female 21.6 21.8 22.1 22.3 22.6

Recommended Assumption – Female 23.0 23.3 23.7 24.0 24.4



Fiscal Impact of Proposed Assumptions
All PERA Divisions (excluding Legislative)

2023 
Valuation

Proposed
Assumptions

Unfunded Liability $8.1 billion $8.4 billion

Funded Ratio 67.7% 67.1%

Member Contribution* 13.54% 13.54%

Employer Contribution* 16.66% 16.66%

Amortization Period** 53 years 73 years

Actuarially Determined 
Contribution (25 year)

36.27% 37.37%

Shortfall 6.07% 7.17%

* Contributions scheduled to increase to 14.09% for members and 17.20% for employers by FY2026
** Amortization period incorporates scheduled contribution rate increases.  Does not incorporate 
increasing membership in Tier 2.

• Proposed 
assumptions 
increase unfunded 
liability by $300 
million and increase 
required 
contributions by 
1.1% of pay

• This is mainly 
attributed to higher 
expected life 
expectancies, offset 
by lower expected 
COLAs in the short 
term



Fiscal Impact of Proposed Assumptions
All PERA Divisions (excluding Legislative)

• As the number of Tier 2 members grows, PERA amortization period should 
improve over time

• Proposed assumptions increase ultimate funding period by about 15 
years, assuming no change in future contributions

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2022 2027 2032 2037 2042 2047 2052 2057 2062 2067

Fu
n

d
ed

 R
at

io

June 30,

2023 Valuation 2024 Experience Study

2023 Valuation: Fully funded in 46 years
2024 Experience Study: Fully funded in 61 years



Fiscal Impact of Proposed Assumptions –
7% Investment Return Assumption
All PERA Divisions (excluding Legislative)

Proposed
Assumptions

7% Invest
Return

Unfunded Liability $8.4 billion $8.8 billion

Funded Ratio 67.1% 66.0%

Member Contribution* 13.54% 13.54%

Employer Contribution* 16.66% 16.66%

Amortization Period** 73 years N/A

Actuarially Determined 
Contribution (25 year)

37.37% 38.74%

Shortfall 7.17% 8.54%

* Contributions scheduled to increase to 14.09% for members and 17.20% for employers by FY2026
** Amortization period incorporates scheduled contribution rate increases.  Does not incorporate 
increasing membership in Tier 2.

• Currently scheduled 
contributions would 
not be expected to 
accumulate 
sufficient assets in 
order to pay all of 
the currently 
scheduled benefits 
under proposed 
assumptions and 
assuming 7% 
investment returns



Additional Fiscal Impact 
Information

18



Fiscal Impact of Proposed Assumptions
State General

2023 
Valuation

Proposed
Assumptions

Unfunded Liability $4.4 billion $4.6 billion

Funded Ratio 57.6% 57.0%

Member Contribution 10.92% 10.92%

Employer Contribution 19.24% 19.24%

Amortization Period N/A N/A

Actuarially Determined 
Contribution (25 year)

41.51% 42.63%

Shortfall 11.35% 12.47%

• Currently scheduled 
contributions are not 
expected to 
accumulate sufficient 
assets in order to pay 
all of the currently 
scheduled benefits

• Proposed 
assumptions increase 
unfunded liability by 
$200 million and 
increase required 
contributions by 1.1% 
of pay



Fiscal Impact of Proposed Assumptions
State Police/Corrections

2023 
Valuation

Proposed
Assumptions

Unfunded Liability ($0.3) billion ($0.3) billion

Funded Ratio 124.9% 122.3%

Member Contribution 9.06% 9.06%

Employer Contribution 25.65% 25.65%

Amortization Period 0 years 0 years

Actuarially Determined 
Contribution (25 year)

7.19% 11.03%

Shortfall/(Excess) (27.52%) (23.68%)

• Proposed 
assumptions 
increase unfunded 
liability by $27 
million and increase 
required 
contributions by 
3.8% of pay

• Current contribution 
rates still sufficient



Fiscal Impact of Proposed Assumptions
Municipal General

2023 
Valuation

Proposed
Assumptions

Unfunded Liability $2.1 billion $2.2 billion

Funded Ratio 73.6% 72.7%

Member Contribution* 14.60% 14.60%

Employer Contribution* 11.06% 11.06%

Amortization Period** 28 years 31 years

Actuarially Determined 
Contribution (25 year)

28.03% 28.84%

Shortfall 2.37% 3.18%

* Contributions scheduled to increase to 15.60% for members and 12.06% for employers by FY2026
** Amortization period incorporates scheduled contribution rate increases.  Does not incorporate 
increasing membership in Tier 2.

• Proposed 
assumptions 
increase unfunded 
liability by $100 
million and increase 
required 
contributions by 
0.8% of pay



Fiscal Impact of Proposed Assumptions
Municipal Police

2023 
Valuation

Proposed
Assumptions

Unfunded Liability $1.0 billion $1.0 billion

Funded Ratio 70.9% 71.0%

Member Contribution* 18.37% 18.37%

Employer Contribution* 20.00% 20.00%

Amortization Period* 61 years 87 years

Actuarially Determined 
Contribution (25 year)

47.45% 48.38%

Shortfall 9.08% 10.01%

* Contributions scheduled to increase to 19.37% for members and 21.00% for employers by FY2026
** Amortization period incorporates scheduled contribution rate increases.  Does not incorporate 
increasing membership in Tier 2.

• Currently scheduled 
contributions 
outside of 25-year 
funding policy

• Proposed 
assumptions 
decrease unfunded 
liability by $5 million 
and increase 
required 
contributions by 
0.9% of pay



Fiscal Impact of Proposed Assumptions
Municipal Fire

2023 
Valuation

Proposed
Assumptions

Unfunded Liability $0.9 billion $0.9 billion

Funded Ratio 55.5% 55.5%

Member Contribution* 20.02% 20.02%

Employer Contribution* 22.80% 22.80%

Amortization Period* N/A N/A

Actuarially Determined 
Contribution (25 year)

58.08% 58.69%

Shortfall 15.26% 15.87%

* Contributions scheduled to increase to 21.02% for members and 23.80% for employers by FY2026
** Amortization period incorporates scheduled contribution rate increases.  Does not incorporate 
increasing membership in Tier 2.

• Currently scheduled 
contributions are 
not expected to 
accumulate 
sufficient assets in 
order to pay all of 
the currently 
scheduled benefits

• Proposed 
assumptions 
decrease unfunded 
liability slightly and 
increase required 
contributions by 
about 0.6% of pay



Legislative Division

2023 
Valuation

Proposed
Assumptions

Unfunded Liability ($7.7) million ($7.6) million

Funded Ratio 119.6% 119.4%

Member Contribution $1,000 $1,000

Employer Contribution N/A* N/A*

Actuarially Determined 
Contribution (25 years)

$1.1 million $1.2 million

* Legislative Fund scheduled to receive a minimum of 
$75,000 every month starting July 2025

• Slight decrease in 
funding surplus due to 
proposed assumptions 
and slight increase in 
required contribution

• If contributions are not 
increased, the funded 
status is expected to 
continue to decrease



Judges Fund

2023 
Valuation

Proposed
Assumptions

Unfunded Liability $76 million $80 million

Funded Ratio 60.5% 59.3%

Member Contribution 10.50% 10.50%

Employer Contribution 15.00% 15.00%

Annual Appropriation $1.2 million $1.2 million

Assumed Docket Fees $2.5 million $2.5 million

Amortization Period N/A N/A

Actuarially Determined 
Contribution (25 years)

43.87% 45.60%

• Currently scheduled 
contributions are not 
expected to accumulate 
sufficient assets in 
order to pay all of the 
currently scheduled 
benefits



Magistrates Fund

2023 
Valuation

Proposed
Assumptions

Unfunded Liability $30 million $31 million

Funded Ratio 53.1% 52.3%

Member Contribution 10.50% 10.50%

Employer Contribution 15.00% 15.00%

Annual Appropriation $1.2 million $1.2 million

Assumed Docket Fees $364,000 $364,000

Amortization Period 53 years 79 years

Actuarially Determined 
Contribution (25 years)

49.12% 50.18%

• Assumed docket fees 
based on FY2020. 
Docket fees in FY2023 
were $265,000

• If future docket fees 
remain at their current 
level, currently 
scheduled 
contributions would not 
be expected to 
accumulate sufficient 
assets in order to pay 
all of the currently 
scheduled benefits 
under proposed 
assumptions



Volunteer Firefighters Fund

2023 
Valuation

Proposed
Assumptions

Unfunded Liability $(34) million $(33) million

Funded Ratio 167.7% 166.0%

Fire Protection Fund 
Contribution

$750,000 $750,000

Actuarially Determined 
Contribution (25 years)

$0 $0

• $750,000 contribution 
still sufficient



QUESTIONS

28



April 16, 2024 

The Retirement Board 
Public Employees Retirement Association 
33 Plaza La Prensa 
Santa Fe, NM 87507 

Re: Development of July 1, 2024 Cost of Living Adjustment 

Dear Members of the Board: 

Section 10-11-118 of the New Mexico Statutes Annotated provides for cost-of-living adjustments 
(COLAs) to certain members whose benefits are in pay status.  The purpose of this letter is to outline the 
applicable COLAs payable to PERA retirees on July 1, 2024 based on the results of the June 30, 2023 
actuarial valuation.   

The COLA determined under Section 10-11-118(E) is 0.50% as of July 1, 2024.  The remainder of this 
letter documents the calculation of this COLA amount. 

General COLA Eligibility 

Section 10-11-118(B) describes the pension recipients that are eligible for a COLA.  Specifically, pension 
recipients must meet the following requirements to be eligible for a COLA: 

• Retirees who have been retired for at least two full calendar years,
• Retirees who attained at least age 65 and have been retired for at least one full calendar year,
• Disabled retirees who have been retired for at least one full calendar year,
• Survivor beneficiaries who have received a survivor pension for at least two full calendar years,

and
• Survivor beneficiaries of a deceased retiree who otherwise would have been retired for at least

two full calendar years.

Determination of Cost-of-Living Adjustment 

Except as noted below, Section 10-11-118(E) describes the COLA payable to eligible pension recipients.  
Specifically, the COLA to a qualified pension recipient shall be determined as an amount equal to: 

1. The smoothed investment rate of return on the actuarial value of assets, less
2. The cost-of-living adjustment hurdle rate, quantity multiplied by
3. The funded ratio on June 30 of the preceding calendar year.
4. The initial COLA is the greater of the amount determined in Steps 1-3 and 0.5%.

The initial COLA is further adjusted based on the funded ratio of PERA. 
1. If the funded ratio is less than 100% then the final COLA cannot exceed 3.00%.
2. If the funded ratio is greater than 100% then the final COLA cannot exceed 5.00%.



The Retirement Board 
Public Employees Retirement Association 
April 16, 2024
Page 2 

Determination of Hurdle Rate 

Section 10-11-118(A)(1) defines the cost-of-living adjustment hurdle rate as “the investment rate of 
return required to fund a cost-of-living adjustment in excess of one-half percent, as determined by the 
association's actuaries.” 

We have interpreted this definition as referring to the investment return assumption that would result 
in a funding period of 25 years (i.e., fall within the current funding policy) based on an annual COLA of 
0.50% and the current statutory contribution rates. 

Based on the results of the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation, we have determined the cost-of-living 
adjustment hurdle rate to be 7.13%.  This rate is based on the same assumptions, methods and data as 
the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation unless otherwise noted.  It is expected that this hurdle rate will be 
updated after each subsequent actuarial valuation. 

The following table summarizes the unfunded actuarial accrued liability and funding period for: 
(1) the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation incorporating the Board’s investment return

assumption of 7.25% and the Board’s COLA assumption of 1.60%,
(2) the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation incorporating the Board’s investment return

assumption of 7.25% and the COLA assumption lowered to the minimum increase of
0.50%, and

(3) the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation incorporating the COLA hurdle rate of 7.13% and
the minimum COLA assumption increase 0.50%.

June 30, 2023 
Actuarial 
Valuation 

Incorporate 
Minimum 

0.50% COLA 
Final COLA 

Hurdle Rate 
Investment Return Assumption 7.25% 7.25% 7.13% 
COLA Assumption 1.60%* 0.50%** 0.50%** 
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability $8.1 billion $6.0 billion $6.3 billion 
Funding Period 53 years 23 years 25 years 

* Valuation assumption
** Per statute



The Retirement Board 
Public Employees Retirement Association 
April 16, 2024
Page 3 

Calculation of the COLA 

The following table outlines the calculation of the COLA payable on July 1, 2024 based on the results of 
the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation: 

Initial Cost-of-Living Adjustment 
(1) FY 2023 Smoothed Investment (AVA) Rate of Return 5.95% 
(2) Current Year Cost-of-Living Adjustment Hurdle Rate 7.13% 
(3) June 30, 2023 Funded Ratio 67.7% 
(4) Initial Cost-of-Living Adjustment is {[(1)-(2)]*(3)}, NLT 0.50% 0.50% 

Final Cost-of-Living Adjustment 
(5) If Funded Ratio is less than 100%, then [(4) NGT 3.00%] 0.50% 
(6) If Funded Ratio is greater than 100%, then [(4) NGT 5.00%] N/A 

Grandfathered Retirees 

Per Sections 10-11-118(F), 10-11-118(G), and 10-11-118(H), certain eligible pension recipients will 
receive a pension increase of 2.50%, provided the following conditions below are met: 

• Retirees who retired with at least 25 years of service and whose annual pension is $25,000, or
less,

• Disabled retirees whose annual pension is $25,000, or less, and
• Retirees and survivor beneficiaries who attained at least age 75 prior to July 1, 2020.

Summary 

We believe the COLAs described in this letter comply with Section 10-11-118 of the New Mexico 
Statutes Annotated. 

This report complements the actuarial valuation report as of June 30, 2023, provided for plan funding 
purposes, which was also provided to PERA. Please see this actuarial valuation report, dated October 26, 
2023, for additional discussion of the nature of actuarial calculations and more information related to 
participant data, economic and demographic assumptions, and benefit provisions. 



The Retirement Board 
Public Employees Retirement Association 
April 16, 2024
Page 4 

To the best of our knowledge, this report is complete and accurate and is in accordance with generally 
recognized actuarial practices and methods. Mr. Wood and Ms. Shaw are members of the American 
Academy of Actuaries and meet the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to 
render the actuarial opinion herein. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company  

Paul Wood, ASA, MAAA Janie Shaw, ASA, EA, MAAA 
Senior Consultant & Actuary Consultant & Actuary 



© 2024 Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company – All rights reserved.

Discussion of July 1, 2024 COLA and
Funded Status Projections

Paul Wood, ASA, MAAA

Krysti Kiesel, ASA, MAAA

May 30, 2024



2

Agenda

• July 1, 2024 COLA

• Projections



3

COLA Provisions

• Initial COLA Formula

1. Rate of return on the actuarial value of assets 
minus

2. Cost-of-living adjustment “hurdle rate”
quantity multiplied by

3. Funded ratio from preceding June 30

Return
on AVA

COLA 
Hurdle 
Rate

Funded 
Ratio

Initial 
COLA



4

COLA Provisions

• Limits on COLA
– Initial COLA cannot be less than 0.50%

– Maximum COLA depends on funded ratio
 If funded ratio < 100%, maximum COLA is 3.00%

 If funded ratio > 100%, maximum COLA is 5.00%

• Grandfathered retirees receive an increase of 2.50%
– Retirees who retired with at least 25 years of service and 

whose annual pension is $25,000, or less

– Disabled retirees whose annual pension is $25,000, or 
less, and

– Retirees and survivor beneficiaries who attained at least 
age 75 prior to July 1, 2020.



5

COLA Provisions

• Hurdle Rate
– By Statute

 “the investment rate of return required to fund a cost-of-living 
adjustment in excess of one-half percent, as determined by the 
association's actuaries”

– Technical Translation
 Investment return assumption that would result in an amortization 

period of 25 years (i.e., fall within the current funding policy) 
based on an annual COLA of 0.50% and the current statutory 
contribution rates

– Common Sense Translation 
 What return do we need to earn on our assets in order to pay the 

current benefits plus a 0.50% annual COLA

– Hurdle rate will be updated after each subsequent 
actuarial valuation



6

July 1, 2024 COLA

• COLA Formula
– Applicable for July 1, 2024 COLA 
– Based on June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation

Return
on AVA

COLA 
Hurdle 
Rate

Funded 
Ratio

Initial 
COLA

5.95% 7.13% 67.7% 0.50%*

July 1, 2024 
COLA

*The minimum 0.50% COLA applies in 2024 since the 
result of the initial COLA formula is less than 0.50%.



7

June 30, 2023 Valuation Results

2023 
Valuation

Experience
Study

Unfunded Liability $8.1 billion $8.4 billion

Funded Ratio 67.7% 67.1%

Member Contribution* 13.54% 13.54%

Employer Contribution* 16.66% 16.66%

Amortization Period** 53 years 73 years

Actuarially Determined 
Contribution (25 year)

36.27% 37.37%

Shortfall 6.07% 7.17%

* Contributions scheduled to increase to 14.09% for members and 17.20% for employers by FY2026
** Amortization period incorporates scheduled contribution rate increases.  Does not incorporate 
increasing membership in Tier 2.



8

Benefits of Projections

• Provide a more thorough analysis of the 
future impact of Tier 2

• Set expectations for future COLAs

• Understand impact of market volatility on 
funded status and future COLAs



9

Basis for Projections

• Projections based on the following assumptions and 
methods
– Future market earnings, net of investment-related expenses, 

modelled two ways
 Static 7.25% per year
 Stochastic returns based on 7.66% return and 12.70% std dev

– Utilizes current AVA method to recognize asset gains/losses
– New COLA provisions reflected in each year of the projection
– Active members who leave employment will be replaced by Tier 

2 members each year
– No benefit changes or other demographic gains/losses
– Starting pay for each group of new hires increases 3.25% each 

year
– Current contribution provisions will remain the same 



10

Projected Funded Ratio
7.25% Annual Returns & Valuation COLA Assumption

• As the number of Tier 2 members grows, PERA amortization period should 
improve over time

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2022 2027 2032 2037 2042 2047 2052 2057 2062 2067

Fu
n

d
ed

 R
at

io

June 30,
2022 Valuation 2024 Experience Study

Impact of Tier 2:
2022 Valuation: Fully funded in 47 years
2024 Experience Study: Fully Funded in 61 years



11

Projected Funded Ratio
Stochastic Projection by Percentile Rank

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2023 2028 2033 2038 2043 2048 2053

Fu
n

d
ed

 R
at

io

Year

Funded Ratio by Percentile Rank

25% 50% 75%

30% chance that PERA is 
fully funded after 30 years

10% chance that PERA fund 
is depleted after 30 years



12

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

2028 2033 2038 2043 2048 2053

Five-Year Rolling Average COLA By Percentiles

25% 50% 75% 90%

Five-Year Average COLA
Stochastic Projection by Percentile Rank

COLA equal to 0.50%: 59% of the time
COLA >= 3.00%: 24% of the time



13

Disclaimers

• This presentation is intended to be used in 
conjunction with the PERA actuarial valuation 
report issued on October 12, 2023.  This 
presentation should not be relied on for any 
purpose other than the purpose described in 
the valuation report.

• This presentation shall not be construed to 
provide tax advice, legal advice or investment 
advice.



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note: Preliminary data. Subject to change.  

          33 Plaza La Prensa, Santa Fe, NM 87507 

Chief Investment Officer Update  
 

Reporting: February 29, 2024 
Presentation Date: May 30, 2024  

 

Investment Principles:  

• Achieve a steady, compounding return that 
minimizes uncompensated risk  

• Focus on allocating risk 

• Effectively manage costs 

• Institute comprehensive risk management 

• Keep long term view 

Key Strategic Goals:  

• Sustain the Trust Fund for current and future 
retirees 

• Set Strategic Asset Allocation to meet the 
actuarial assumed return over the long run 

• Produce returns that meet or exceed benchmarks 

• Be cost-efficient 

Asset Allocation & Cash Activity: 
 
Fiscal Year-to-Date, the Fund has experienced a gain of $519.9 Million in its net asset value (NAV); investment gains were 
about $899.4 Million less $379.5 Million paid out in benefits to retirees (this amount represented 39% of monthly benefit 
payments). 
 

 
 
 
At month-end Fund held 21% of tier 1 (liquidity) assets and remains in compliance with the IPS minimum of 10%. 
 
Asset weights at the end of the month were in some cases above the policy ranges as we move to the new IPS guidelines 
approved in December for April 1st implementation:  
 

 

as of: February 29, 2024

519,863,474

 FYTD Benefit Payments

17,177,645,205

16,657,781,731                July 1, 2023 Beginning Market Value

Change in NAV (FYTD) 

February 29, 2024 Ending Market Value

Investment Gain/Losses 899,391,198

Market Value Change 

(379,527,724)

as of: February 29, 2024 Target Actual Range

Global Equity 38.0% 43.4%  +/- 5%

Risk Reduction 17.0% 21.0%  +/- 3%

Credit 19.0% 18.3%  +/- 4%

Real Assets 18.0% 17.0%  +/- 4%

Multi Risk 8.0% 0.2%  +/- 4%

Asset Allocation 



2 
Note: Preliminary data. Subject to change. 

 

 

Implementation Update:  

In February, no proposals were presented to PRISM that moved forward to our Portfolio Fit and Process Review Team.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

General Update:  

PERA’s internal auditors, CLA, began a review of our investment technology. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Market Summary:  

During February, stock markets continued a rally that began in the fall of 2023, influenced by a mix of economic indicators and 
corporate earnings reports, and hopes the Federal Reserve completed its tightening cycle. Global equities were up 3.82% in 
February. Meanwhile, the U.S. bond market saw a slight decline in February, shaped by the Federal Reserve's monetary policy 
stance and inflation expectations. The U.S. bond market returned -1.41% for the month. Bond yields rose, reflecting a market 
consensus that the Federal Reserve might continue to raise interest rates to combat persistent inflation. This environment led to 
decreased bond prices, particularly affecting longer-duration bonds, which are more sensitive to interest rate changes. 
 
In February, the economy delivered a strong performance, with economic growth, and job creation surpassing economists’ 
expectations, giving confirmation to the Federal Reserve (Fed) that it remained too early to begin cutting rates. U.S. real GDP rose 
3.3% in Q4 2023, driven by consumer spending and bringing the average annual 2023 growth to 2.5%, the same as the five-year 
average growth prior to the pandemic. In February, the labor market maintained its strength, with 353,000 jobs added this month 
and unemployment holding at 3.7% for the third month in a row. As a likely result, consumer sentiment remained strong. However, 
the economy faced headwinds as inflation paused its downward trajectory, which was another reason for the Fed to remain on 
hold. Despite these challenges, the economy demonstrated real underlying strength. 

Performance Summary:  

When measuring success in implementation against key strategic goals, PERA’s experience is favorable on a relative basis  while 
lagging on an absolute. First, some net returns have fallen below the 7.25% assumed rate of return for most short and intermediate 
time periods, producing 5.44%, 6.58%, 6.52%, and 5.92% for the 3-, 5-, 7-, and 10-year periods. However, when measuring long-
term results, the fund remains above this targeted return, producing 7.58% and 8.57% for the 30-year and since inception periods. 
Second, relative results have been significantly favorable, exceeding PERA’s diversified Policy Benchmark across most measurable 
time horizons. Most notably, outpacing the benchmark by 2.01%, 1.08%, 0.87%, and 0.42% for the 3-, 5-, 7- and 10-year periods, 
respectively, displaying strong asset allocation and manager selection attribution. Finally, when measuring PERA’s portfolio against 
national pension peers, on an absolute and risk-adjusted basis, PERA’s Sharpe Ratio or risk-adjusted returns have been in the top 
third for most time periods.  
 
Major 1-Year Contributors: Public Equity was up 22.59% net and outperformed its benchmark by 0.97%; Active US Equity was up 
24.94% net exceeding its benchmark by 3.32%; Liquid Credit was up 11.28% net but underperformed its benchmark by -0.86%; 
Alternative Liquid Credit was up 11.90% net but underperformed its benchmark by -0.24%. 
 
Major 1-Year Detractors: Illiquid Real Estate was down -7.48% net and underperformed its benchmark by -13.67%. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
Note: Preliminary data. Subject to change. 

PERFORMANCE 

 

  

 

Performance Summary 

as of: February 29, 2024 MTD 3M FYTD 1-Year 3-Year 5-Year 7-Year 10-Year
Total Fund 0.93% 3.83% 5.45% 9.28% 5.44% 6.58% 6.52% 5.92%
Policy Index 1.37% 5.68% 7.27% 12.12% 3.43% 5.50% 5.65% 5.50%

Value Add -0.44% -1.85% -1.82% -2.84% 2.01% 1.08% 0.87% 0.42%

Global Equity 2.73% 6.04% 9.18% 16.00% 8.88% 10.76% 10.43% 8.85%
Policy Index 3.82% 9.39% 11.40% 20.50% 6.30% 9.41% 9.33% 8.45%

Value Add -1.09% -3.35% -2.22% -4.50% 2.58% 1.35% 1.10% 0.40%

Risk Reduction -0.71% 2.09% 1.28% 3.04% -2.53% 0.92% 1.23% 1.75%
Policy Index -1.41% 2.08% 1.63% 3.33% -3.07% 0.56% 0.95% 1.48%

Value Add 0.70% 0.01% -0.35% -0.29% 0.54% 0.36% 0.28% 0.27%

Credit 0.57% 3.67% 8.01% 10.35% 3.98% 4.84% 4.77% 4.13%
Policy Index 0.90% 4.88% 9.43% 12.14% 0.97% 2.97% 3.47% 3.54%

Value Add -0.33% -1.21% -1.42% -1.79% 3.01% 1.87% 1.30% 0.59%

Real Assets 0.17% 0.50% -0.24% -0.50% 9.03% 6.40% 5.74% 5.36%
Policy Index 0.31% 2.25% 2.98% 3.17% 6.16% 4.89% 4.70% 4.40%

Value Add -0.14% -1.75% -3.22% -3.67% 2.87% 1.51% 1.04% 0.96%

Multi-Risk -2.57% 3.54% 2.22% 10.02% 0.26%
Policy Index -0.86% 5.55% 4.13% 12.14% 0.74%

Value Add -1.71% -2.01% -1.91% -2.12% -0.48%

as of: February 29, 2024 Stnd Dev. Sharpe Beta Alpha IR TE

1-Year 

Total Fund 6.1% 0.7% 0.6% 0.1% -0.6% 4.7%

Policy Index 10.6% 0.7% 1.0% 0.0% 0.0%

3-Year

Total Fund 7.5% 0.4% 0.6% 2.2% 0.3% 5.2%

Policy Index 12.1% 0.1% 1.0% 0.0% 0.0%
5-Year 

Total Fund 7.9% 0.6% 0.6% 2.2% 0.1% 5.2%

Policy Index 12.5% 0.3% 1.0% 0.0% 0.0%

7-Year 

Total Fund 7.3% 0.7% 0.6% 2.1% 0.1% 4.6%

Policy Index 11.2% 0.4% 1.0% 0.0% 0.0%

10-Year

Total Fund 6.9% 0.7% 0.7% 1.7% 0.0% 3.9%

Policy Index 9.8% 0.5% 1.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Risk Summary 

Staffing Update 

• New Investment Associate will start in June. 
 

Vacancies: 

• Investment Associate/PM (Gov. Ex. FTE). 

• Investment Risk Strategist (Gov. Ex. FTE). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT        
PERA BOARD MEETING – May 30, 2024 

 
 

 
Total Retiree Payroll = $1,459,598,209  Total Contributions: $ 934,050,276  

  ** Due to adjustments to Employer reports contributions amounts are subject to change 
 

  

** Total Refunds Paid during this period was $45,691,981 

 

$119,600,498 
$119,733,757 

$120,823,699 
$121,390,571 

$121,352,065 
$121,553,047 

$121,832,670 
$121,826,331 

$122,668,054 
$122,809,572 

$122,962,710 
$123,045,235 

$66,302,958 

$86,488,453 

$72,309,885 

$76,350,680 

$71,847,452 

$80,884,845 

$92,129,354 

$74,802,888 

$80,761,289 

$73,135,235 

$80,203,357 

$78,833,880 

 $30,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $50,000,000

 $60,000,000

 $70,000,000

 $80,000,000

 $90,000,000

 $100,000,000

 $110,000,000

 $120,000,000

 $130,000,000

Retiree Payroll vs: Total Contributions - May 2023- April 2024                   

 Retiree Payroll Contributions

$(1,220,263,958)

$781,358,869 

$438,905,089 

Benefit Payments

Employee/Employer Contributions

Investment Portfolio Transfers for Benefit Payments

FY24 Contributions: Investment Income & Contributions thru April 2024



 
Page 2 
May 30, 2024 Executive Director’s Report 

2 
 

 

 VACANCY REPORT 
Position Division Date Vacated Status 

Investment Risk Strategist Investments 3/30/2024 Posted 
Investment Associate Investments 4/27/2024 Posted 
IT Systems Administrator III IT 4/30/2024 Posted 
IT Technology Officer IT 5/7/2024 Posted 

 
 PERA has 87 authorized FTE and currently has 4 vacancies.  

 
ADDITIONS/DEPARTURES/PROMOTIONS 

Employee Position/Division Date 
Started/Vacated Status 

Isaac Jimenez IT End User Support II/IT 3/30/2024 Promotion 
German Gutierrez-Cardoza Investment Associate/Investments 4/27/2024 Departure 
Matt Bazan IT Systems Administrator III 4/30/2024 Departure 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2024 AIRTIME PURCHASES  2024 AIRTIME PURCHASES 
Plan Type May Purchases 

 
No. of Months May Purchases 

State Plan 3 9 1 2 
Municipal Plan 1 0 2 0 
Municipal Plan 2 1 3 1 
Municipal Plan 3 2 4 1 
Municipal Plan 4 0 5 1 
Municipal Detention Plan 1 0 6 1 
Municipal Fire Plan 5 2 7 0 
Municipal Police Plan 3 0 8 0 
Municipal Police Plan 4 0 9 0 
Municipal Police Plan 5 2 10 0 
State Police/Corrections Plan 3 11 0 
  12 13 

     
TOTAL: 19 TOTAL: 19  

   
 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Page 3 
May 30, 2024 Executive Director’s Report 

3 
 

  

PERA SmartSave Items of Interest – April 2024 

County by Region  North – Peter Rappmund In-Person Individual and 
Group Meetings 

Virtual Individual and Group 
Meetings 

Bernalillo 2 2 
Colfax  1 
Rio Arriba 2 3 
San Juan 32 4 
San Miguel  2 
Santa Fe 46 21 
Statewide 11 38 
Taos  1 

   

County by Region  Central - Paul Lium In-Person Individual and 
Group Meetings 

Virtual Individual and Group 
Meetings 

Bernalillo 222  
Quay 7  
McKinley 6   

  

County by Region  South - Linda Miller In-Person Individual and 
Group Meetings 

Virtual Individual and Group 
Meetings 

Chaves  38 
Dona Ana 22 32 
Eddy  1 
Grant  13 
Hidalgo 12 9 
Lea 72 12 
Lincoln  4 
Luna  11 
Sierra  5 
Socorro 8 7 
 

SmartSave Assets as of 4/30/2024 - $817,622,327 
SmartSave Participants as of 4/30/2024 – 23,701 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Page 4 
May 30, 2024 Executive Director’s Report 

4 
 

 

2024 Independent Contracts Reviews 
Entity # of Contracts Reviewed April 2024 
NM Department of Health 1 
Claunch-Pinto SWCD/Mountainair, NM 1 
NM Environment Department 1 
NM Administrative Office of the Courts 2 
NM Office of the Secretary of State 1 
NM 2nd Judicial District Court 1 
Rio Arriba County 3 
NM 10th Judicial District Attorney’s Office 1 
NM Public Regulation Commission 1 
NM Aging & Long-Term Care Services 1 
NM Board of Licensure for Professional Engineers & Surveyors 1 
NM Court of Appeals 1 
NM 4th Judicial District Attorney’s Office 1 
NM 2nd Judicial District Attorney’s Office 1 
NM Human Services Department 1 

SubTotal: 18 
  
Reviewed, but “Not in Pay Status”  
NM Office of the Secretary of State 1 
NM Board of Licensure for Professional Engineers & Surveyors 1 

SubTotal: 2 
  

Total: 20 
 

 

 

 

 


	May 2024 Board Agenda
	5.30.2024 Board agenda.pdf

	Consent Agenda
	May 2024 Consent Agenda.pdf
	Consent agenda documentation
	Texico Resolution 2024-3.pdf
	Torrance County Resolution 2024-18.pdf
	Taos County 2024-23 Detention Officer Contribution Pick up.pdf
	Taos County 2024-24 Police Member Coverage Plan Contribution Pick up.pdf
	Taos County 2024-25 General Member Coverage Contribution Pick up.pdf
	NCPERS Public Pension Funding Forum.pdf
	70th Annual Employee Benefits Conference.pdf


	2024 Experience Study
	NMPERA_ExpStudy_2024.pdf

	2024 Cost Of Living Adjustment (COLA)/Updated Long Term Projections
	COLA Determination - July 2024.pdf
	2024 COLA and Projections.pdf

	CIO Report
	2024 02 - CIO Update.pdf

	Executive Director's Report
	May 2024 ED Report.pdf




